
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 091222.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as 


indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, September 12, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


   321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85778016234?pwd=MEdMMmxrYkdkMGl3Tjg5S29pWGlaQT09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 857 7801 6234 Passcode:  750148 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any 
written comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of August 8, 2022.   


3. Council Representative Report. 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


5. Rezoning request for 1008 Riverview Drive from SR-4 Single Family Residential to SR-


5 Single Family Residential. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


6. Certified survey map (CSM) request to split the parcel at 1008 Riverview Drive to create 


a new single family lot. 


 Recommendation to Council 


7. Rezoning request for 2232 Otteson Drive from Institutional to Planned Development – 


General Development Plan. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85778016234?pwd=MEdMMmxrYkdkMGl3Tjg5S29pWGlaQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 091222.docx 


 


8. Vacation of a portion of Velkommen Way at US Highway 51. 


 Recommendation to Council 


9. Extra-territorial land division at 3511 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland. 


 Recommendation to Council 


10. Discuss a zoning code amendment for communication towers. 


11. Future agenda items. 


12. Adjournment. 
 


 


COMMISSIONERS:  


Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair  Tom Robinson   Dorann Bradford 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAILED NOTICES: 


Leadership Team    Council members  Steve Kittelson 


Matt Dregne    Stoughton Hub  Area Townships  


Peter Sveum    Michael Stacey  Chamber of Commerce 


smonette@stolib.org   Spencer Meier   wstotv981@gmail.com  


Sue Strandlie    Bob Dvorak   Tim Kotlowski  


Eric Olson    Mike Rumpf   Dave Riesop   


Jerry Wendt    Rick Manthe 


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com      


   


            


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 


accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In 


addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have 


access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com






T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  080822.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, August 8, 2022 at 6:00 pm 


Hybrid Meeting 


 


Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Dorann Bradford; 


Phil Caravello; Al Farrow; Tom Robinson and Tom Majewski 


Members Absent: None 


Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Guests:  Jeff Kraemer; Todd Nelson; Bob Dvorak; James McFadden; David West; Jeff Groenier; 


Fred Van Buren; Bruce Hollar; Amy Hartsough; Dennis Huvila; Rob Hostrawser and Paul 


Blommel. 


 


1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Plan Commission meeting minutes of July11, 2022.   


Motion by Majewski to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion 


carried unanimously.   


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated the Common Council approved R-146, 147 and 148 - 2022 and O-


14-2022. 


 


4. Status of Current Developments.   


Mayor Swadley gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined in the 


packet of materials and noted that the contractor is working on the irrigation system at 


Walmart before installing plantings. 


 


5. Planned Development - General Development Plan for Lot 6 within the 51 West 


Development. 


Mayor Swadley explained the request to increase density on this site. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Farrow questioned the signage listed in the application.  Bruce Hollar representing the 


applicants stated there is not a detailed plan yet for signage.  Schumacher questioned 


if there will be more details for signage at the SIP stage.  Stacey stated there would 


be. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


08/08/22 


Page 2 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  080822.docx 


 


Robinson questioned if the Fire Department had reviewed the site plan.  Stacey stated 


they have and the applicant added the additional access to Oak Opening Drive for 


better emergency access per their recommendation. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the General 


Development Plan as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   


 


Fred Van Buren, applicant, questioned if the approval is for increasing the density to 


20 units.  Mayor Swadley stated the recommendation is for 20 units. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


6. New signage within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District at 135 W. 


Main Street.  


Mayor Swadley introduced the request.  


 


Stacey gave an overview of the request. 


 


Motion by Robinson to approve the signage as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 


 


7. Amended site plan for 314 W. Main Street. 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


Amy Hartsough and Dennis Huvila, 311 W. Washington Street explained they only 


had a verbal agreement with Todd Nelson to change the access easement from the 


Main Street to Prairie Street.  They had an attorney draft an access easement 


document for recording.  However, at this point they have no signed agreement and 


have not heard back from Todd Nelson.  Todd Nelson eliminated their access to Main 


Street without a signed agreement.  They are still willing to work with Todd Nelson to 


change the access to Prairie Street. 


 


The Commission discussed options. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to postpone this request until an access agreement has been 


worked out, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


8. Site plan for Water Street Tavern, 324 S. Water Street. 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


Stacey explained the intent of the request. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


08/08/22 


Page 3 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  080822.docx 


 


Schumacher recommends they add a deep sand bed under the concrete where the 


planned freezer will be located.  Schumacher noted these areas are prone to black 


mold. 


 


Motion by Robinson to approve the site plan as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 


 


9. Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine parcels at 1000 East Street. 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


Stacey explained the applicant is planning a future building addition and currently a 


lot line splits the building. 


 


Paul Blommel, owner, explained the intent is to eliminate the non-conforming lot line 


and prepare for a future addition to add office space and he plans to upgrade the looks 


of the exterior. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM as 


presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


10. Concept plan at 1424 US Highway 51-138 (former pizza hut site). 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


Jeff Kraemer gave an overview of the concept plan and described a new pick-up only 


model that does not use a menu board and payments are made prior to pick-up. 


 


Robinson questioned where customers drive once they pick up their order.  Jeff 


Kraemer stated he envisioned them turning sharp right and leaving the site.  Robinson 


stated there does not appear to be ample room for the turn-around there.  Jeff Kraemer 


agreed that will need to be reviewed. 


 


Bradford questioned if both drive thru’s were pick-up only.  Jeff Kraemer stated the 


west drive thru has a menu board. 


 


The Commission discussed options for the site. 


 


Stacey stated the plan is based on the current code requirement for 100 feet of vehicle 


stacking before the drive-up window and we know this is not working for several sites 


already.  Stacey noted this section of code is on our list for attorney review. 


 


Farrow stated traffic in this area is very busy at times which makes it difficult to 


access this site. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


08/08/22 


Page 4 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  080822.docx 


 


 


Jeff Kraemer stated he needs to make a decision on the site within the next 30 days.   


 


The Commission indicated a willingness to work with him on a development plan. 


 


11. Planned Development – Concept Plan for Lots 1, 3 and 4 within the 51 West 


Development. 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


Stacey explained the intent of the zoning change is to increase density on each lot. 


 


Schumacher questioned if the increase in density will affect the traffic impact. 


 


Jeff Groenier, representing the applicant stated the density is only increased by 14 


units even with the density increase at Lot 6.  He stated the request is also for a 


reduced rear setback from 30 to 20 feet. 


 


Bob Dvorak stated the increase in density should not affect the development and 


noted that Lot 17 cannot be developed until the round-about is constructed at Hwy 51 


and Rutland-Dunn. 


 


Jeff Groenier stated the intent is to come back with the General Development Plan for 


the October 10th meeting. 


 


12. Proposed ordinance amendments to Chapter 30 – Floodplain Zoning. 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


Stacey explained the WDNR updated the model floodplain ordinance in March of this 


year and communities in the State are required to meet these requirements. Since the 


City has not updated the Floodplain ordinance since 2004 we were due to update this 


ordinance.  Stacey worked with WDNR staff to make the necessary amendments. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Schumacher questioned if the floodplain maps changed as part of this amendment.  


Stacey stated they did not change. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


08/08/22 


Page 5 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  080822.docx 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the Ordinance 


amendment as presented, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


 


13. Future agenda items. 


314 W. Main Street site plan and GDP for Lots 1, 3 and 4 at 51 West 


 


14. Adjournment. 


Motion by Schumacher to adjourn at 7:35 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Michael P. Stacey 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2022\Status of development 091222.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF   DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 


Date: September 6, 2022 


To: Plan Commission Members 


From: Rodney J. Scheel 


Director of Planning & Development 


Michael Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


Subject: Status of Current Developments 


Status of Development: 


• Sinobec Resources (formerly NAFA) – Landscaping, lighting planned for September.


• Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving planned when adjacent property 
is developed.


• Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction.


• Riverfront Development – SIP approved.  Delayed due to contamination found onsite.


• Dollar Tree – Landscaping, lighting, and bike rack still in the works.  Storm pond corrections 
have been made but need to be inspected.


• Pizza Hut - 1400 US Hwy 51 – Landscaping and bike rack in process.


• 314 W. Main Street:


- Stop work order in place due to erosion control non-compliance.


- Owner is seeking to eliminate access easement/driveway off W. Main Street – Tabled 
until an agreement is reached.


• Walmart landscaping – The landscaping contractor has been working on replacing the 
irrigation system and has all of the trees and shrubs in stock to be planted.


• Isham Street extension project has started.


• Emmi-Roth project has begun.


• 51 West development continues to make progress.  One footing and foundation permit has 
been issued for a multi-family structure at Lot 18.


• Magnolia Springs development has a USAA amendment approval coming up in October and 
applications for preliminary plat and rezoning have been submitted with public hearings set 
for November.



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 
August 2022 


 
COMMERCIAL 


Building Activity 
Type # of Permits 


August 2022 
August 2022 $ 
Fees Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 


Values 
Addition 0 $0 2 $820 $27,000 
New 
Construction - 
Building 1 $24,572 7 $26,381 $17,255,294 
New 
Construction - 
Other 0 $0 0 $0 $0 
Remodel/Repair 5 $977 80 $18,659 $2,367,083 
Zoning 8 $1,045 62 $44,947 $223,799 
Grand Total 14 $26,594 151 $90,807 $19,873,176 


 
 


RESIDENTIAL 
Building Activity 
Type # of Permits 


August 2022 
August 2022 $ 
Fees Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 


Values 
Addition 4 $695 27 $5,222 $689,746 
New 
Construction -  
Dwelling 5 $5,490 37 $48,781 $9,958,555 
New 
Construction - 
Other  0 $0 0 $0 $0 
Remodel/Repair 55 $4,774 373 $30,261 $3,544,947 
Zoning 18 $1,733 107 $45,820 $371,715 
Grand Total 82 $12,692 544 $130,084 $14,564,963 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 


 City of Stoughton 


For more information, please contact: Michael Stacey – Zoning Administrator 
(608) 646-0421 or mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 


 


 
 


 City of Stoughton  S:\Planning\Desi\Monthly Permit Report\August 2022.docx                                                            


0


5


1


1


0


0


16


211


10


30


0


4


1


5


0


0


5


55


8


18


0 50 100 150 200 250


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwelling


Commercial New Construction- Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits Issued


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Monthly Permit Data


August-22


August-21


2


27


6


19


0


0


81


996


49


163


2


27


7


37


0


0


80


373


62


107


0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwellings


Commercial New Construction - Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits 


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Yearly Permits Issued to Date


YEAR 2022


YEAR 2021








\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\091222\PC Info\1008 Riverview Memo.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF   DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


Date: 


To: 


From: 


Subject: 


September 6, 2022 


Plan Commissioners and Common Council 


Rodney J. Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 


Michael P. Stacey 
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


Agenda Item for the September 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting 
and Common Council Meetings of September 27 and October 11, 
2022. 


Request by Timothy Kotlowski to rezone the property at 1008 Riverview Drive from SR-4 
Single Family Residential to SR-5 Single Family Residential. 
This requested rezoning is to provide building setback flexibility to split the parcel and create an 
additional single-family parcel.  The minimum building setbacks for SR-4 are 25 feet in the front, 
10 feet on the sides and 30 feet at the rear.  While the minimum setbacks for the SR-5 district are 
25 feet in the front, 6 feet on a side (total of both sides minimum of 14 feet) and 25 feet at the rear.  
Park impact fees will be required for the newly created lot at the time of application for a building 
permit.  The ordinance and application information are provided.  A public hearing and 
recommendation to the Council are necessary.   



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
An ordinance amending the zoning classification at 1008 Riverview Drive in the City of Stoughton, 


WI.  


Committee 
Action:   


Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0 


Fiscal Impact:      


File Number: O -    - 2022 Date Introduced: First Reading: 
Second Reading: 


RECITALS 


1. Timothy Kotlowski (the “Owner/Applicant”) has requested to change the zoning
classification of the parcel at 1008 Riverview Drive from SR-4 Single Family Residential
to SR-5 Single Family Residential.


2. The applicant proposes to split the parcel and create an additional buildable single-family
lot.  The SR-5 district allows reduced setbacks for more flexibility.


3. On September 14, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing
regarding the proposed zoning change.  The public hearing was preceded by the
publication of a class 2 notice, and other notices required by law.


4. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the City
of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend that the zoning change be approved
as presented.


5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning change, the Plan
Commission’s recommendation and finds that the proposed zoning change is consistent
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan.







ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance 
as if set forth in full. 


   
Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 below, the zoning classification of 


the parcel at 1008 Riverview Drive shall be changed from SR-4 Single Family Residential to SR-5 
Single Family Residential. 


 
Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication pursuant to law as presented. 
 
 


 
 


Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\1008 Riverview Rezoning Ordinance.doc 
 
 
 
 
 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, September 12, 
2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 
rezoning of the property at 1008 Riverview Drive, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, owned by BDE 
Holdings LLC.  The property is proposed to be rezoned from SR-4 Single Family Residential to 
SR-5 – Single Family Residential. 
 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  (Virtual 


and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:   You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85778016234?pwd=MEdMMmxrYkdkMGl3Tjg5S29pWGlaQT09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 857 7801 6234  Passcode: 750148 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
     
Published August 18 and 25, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Rezone 1008 River View Drive.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85778016234?pwd=MEdMMmxrYkdkMGl3Tjg5S29pWGlaQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





















N
 V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


Li
nc


ol
n 


Av


Roby Rd


Devonshire Ct


Bre
we


H
a


Sundt Ln


R
iv


er
vi


ew
 D


r


M
on


ro
e 


C
t


Jo
hn


so
n 


St


Hi
l l


cr
es


tR
d


Sh
irl


ey
 S


t


wer Rd


Coolidge Rd


Oak
woo


d
Ct


We


Roosevelt St


Truman Rd


Overlook Dr


Holtan Rd


1008












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\091222\PC Info\1008 Riverview Memo csm.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF   DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


Date: 


To: 


From: 


Subject: 


September 6, 2022 


Plan Commissioners and Common Council 


Rodney J. Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 


Michael P. Stacey 
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


Agenda Item for the September 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting 
and the October 11, 2022 Common Council Meeting. 


Request by Timothy Kotlowski to split the property by CSM at 1008 Riverview Drive to 
create an additional single-family lot. 
This split will allow the creation of an additional single-family in-fill lot.  Park impact fees will 
be required for the newly created lot at the time of building permit application.  The resolution 
and application information are provided.  A recommendation to the Council are necessary.   



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to split the parcel at 1008 Riverview Drive into two parcels 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
N/A  


File Number: 
 
R -    - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


RECITALS 
 
1. Timothy Kotlowski is requesting approval of a CSM to split the parcel at 1008 Riverview Drive 


with the intent to create an additional buildable single-family lot. 
 


2. The CSM has been referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City 
Council. 
 


3. The Plan Commission reviewed the CSM on September 14, 2022 and determined the CSM is 
consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. 
 


4. The Plan Commission recommends approval of the CSM by the Common Council as presented. The 
Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation. 
 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM subject to: 
• The CSM being recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy being provided to 


the City of Stoughton Department of Planning & Development; 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
    
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
  
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\1008 Riverview Dr CSM 2022.doc 



















N
 V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


Li
nc


ol
n 


Av


Roby Rd


Devonshire Ct


Bre
we


H
a


Sundt Ln


R
iv


er
vi


ew
 D


r


M
on


ro
e 


C
t


Jo
hn


so
n 


St


Hi
l l


cr
es


tR
d


Sh
irl


ey
 S


t


wer Rd


Coolidge Rd


Oak
woo


d
Ct


We


Roosevelt St


Truman Rd


Overlook Dr


Holtan Rd


1008








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\091222\PC Info\2232 Otteson Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  September 6, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the September 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 
Council Meetings of September 27 and October 11, 2022. 
 
Request by Bob Dvorak to rezone the property at 2232 Otteson Drive from I – Institutional to 
PD – Planned Development – General Development Plan. 
This lot was planned for a tot lot park but it was decided the small park did not fit with the City 
Park Plan.  Bob Dvorak has an offer to acquire the lot to sell for single-family development.  The 
adjacent lots are zoned Planned Development with reduced setbacks so this lot is planned to follow 
similar requirements.  The ordinance and related materials are provided.  A public hearing and 
recommendation to the Council are necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
An ordinance amending the zoning classification at 2232 Otteson Drive in the City of Stoughton, WI. 


Committee 
Action:   


Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0 


Fiscal Impact:      


File Number: O -    - 2022 Date Introduced: First Reading: 
Second Reading: 


RECITALS 
1. Bob Dvorak has requested to change the zoning classification of the parcel at 2232


Otteson Drive from I - Institutional (Park) to Planned Development-General
Development Plan.


2. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory
framework designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic
design in the City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in
the development of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the
City’s Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for
the land proposed to be zoned PD-Planned Development, used for establishing base-line
zoning requirements and identifying needed flexibility is SR-5 Single-Family Residential.


3. This lot was originally planned for a park however; the City has gone through a legal
process to vacate the area in preparation for a single-family use.


4. The minimum principal building setback and lot size requirements for SR-5 Single
Family Residential are: Front yard setback = 25 feet; Rear yard setback = 25 feet; Side
yard setback = 6 feet, 14 feet combined and Minimum lot area = 7200 square feet.


5. The applicant is seeking the following flexibility from the SR-5 requirements:  Minimum
Lot Size = 6565 square feet.


6. On September 14, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing
regarding the proposed zoning change.  The public hearing was preceded by the
publication of a class 2 notice, and other notices required by law.


7. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the City
of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend that the zoning change be approved
as presented.







8. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning change, the Plan
Commission’s recommendation and finds that the proposed zoning change is consistent
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan.


ORDINANCE 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance 
as if set forth in full. 


Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 and 4 below, the zoning 
classification of the parcel at 2232 Otteson Drive from I - Institutional to Planned Development-General 
Development Plan. 


Section 3. The minimum lot area is approved to be 6565 square feet.  The Specific 
Implementation Plan shall be considered approved as long as all SR-5 District requirements are met; 
including the minimum lot area deviation found in this section. 


Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication pursuant to law as presented. 


Dates 
Council Adopted: 


Mayor Approved: 
Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:  


Attest:   
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\2232 Otteson Drive Rezoning Ordinance.doc 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, September 12, 
2022, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard to consider an application 
by Harvest Farms, Bob Dvorak to rezone the property at 2232 Otteson Drive from I – 
Institutional (Park) to PD-GDP – Planned Development – General Development Plan, in the 
Nordic Ridge Development, City of Stoughton, WI. 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  (Virtual 
and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:   You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85778016234?pwd=MEdMMmxrYkdkMGl3Tjg5S29pWGlaQT09 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799     Meeting ID: 857 7801 6234 Passcode: 750148 


If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.


Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 


Published August 4 and August 11, 2022 Hub 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  2232 Otteson Drive Notice.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85778016234?pwd=MEdMMmxrYkdkMGl3Tjg5S29pWGlaQT09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





mstacey

Highlight







H
oe


l A
ve


nu
e







Otteson Dr


N
or


dl
an


d 
D


r


Valberg Dr


Odegard Dr
Je


ns
 C


t


")A


X







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\2232 Otteson Drive\Rezoning 2022\Website Info.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Planned Development (PD) Review and Approval 
(Requirements per Section 78-914) 


Applicant Name: Harvest Farms LLC -  Robert H. Dvorak Member 


Applicant Address: 1081 Eagle Court, Edgerton, WI. 53534 


Applicant Phone and Email: 608.712.2048     bob@rhdproperties.com 


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): City of Stoughton 


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________ 


Subject Property Address: 2232 Otteson Drive – Outlot 7, Nordic Ridge 


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a 
planned development and by the City to process said application. Part II is to be used by the Applicant 
to submit a complete application; Parts I and III are to be used by the City as a guide when processing 
said application. 


I. Recordation of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: 7.22.22 


Application fee of $440 received by Zoning Administrator Date: 8.1.22 


II. Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use


PD Process Step 1: Pre-application


Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal 
of all application materials to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review.  This step is 
not mandatory but optional at the discretion of the applicant or Zoning Administrator. 


X A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to discuss the proposed planned development with City staff. 


N/A B.   Engage in an informal discussion with City staff regarding the potential PD. Appropriate topics may 
include: location, project themes and images, general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses being 
considered, approximate residential densities, and non-residential intensities, general treatment of natural 
features, general relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and relationship to the 
Comprehensive Plan. 


PD Process Step 2: Concept Plan 


The Applicant shall provide a draft application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:  N/A 


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft electronic PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for
determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission 
agenda for Concept Plan review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items: 


 (1) A general written description of proposed PD including the following:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\2232 Otteson Drive\Rezoning 2022\Website Info.doc


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed
PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning
standards which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in
which they apply. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the
Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility.


 (3) A written description of potentially requested exemption(s) from the requirements of the
underlying zoning district, in the following order: 
1. Land Use Exemptions


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions


3. Bulk Exemptions


4. Landscaping Exceptions


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions


 (4) A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives. 


PD Process Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP) 


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows: 


X A. Provide Zoning Administrator with an electronic draft GDP Submittal Packet at least 4 weeks 
prior to the next available Plan Commission meeting for determination of completeness prior 
to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for GDP review. The submittal 
packet shall contain all of the following items: 
X (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed: 


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its surroundings,
and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 100 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


N/A (3)A general written description of proposed PD including:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed. This shall identify
barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard
zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the Applicant
suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning.







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\2232 Otteson Drive\Rezoning 2022\Website Info.doc


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements
of the underlying zoning district, in the following order:


1. Land Use Exemptions.


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions.


3. Bulk Exemptions.


4. Landscaping Exceptions.


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions.


N/A (4) A General Development Plan Drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 17"
electronic copy shall also be provided) of the proposed project showing at least the
following information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for
approval:
 A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the


general location of major public streets and/or private drives.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and specifically
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and
use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate areas
of large development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to specific areas
on the GDP Drawing.


N/A (5)General conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate landscape
locations at building foundation, street frontage, developed lot, paved area and
bufferyard (except as noted in the listing of exceptions).


N/A (6)A general signage plan for the project, including all
 Project identification signs.


N/A (7)Written justification for the proposed Planned Development.







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\2232 Otteson Drive\Rezoning 2022\Website Info.doc


PD Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP) 


The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for zoning map amendments per Section 
78-903 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for certified survey maps, preliminary plats
and final plats of subdivisions per the Municipal Code. All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed
within five years of final Common Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall
be permitted. The Common Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority
vote following a public hearing.


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet)  


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) 


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk  


Class 2 legal notice published on 8/4/22 and 8/11/22


Date: August 15, 2022


Date:September 6, 2022


Date: July 29, 2022


Sec. 78-914. - Planned development zoning district procedures. 


(1) Purpose.


(a) The purpose of this Section is to provide regulations which govern the procedure and
requirements for the review and approval, or denial, of proposed planned developments, and to
provide for the possible relaxation of certain development standards pertaining to the most
comparable standard zoning district as determined by the zoning administrator.












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\091222\PC Info\Velkommen Way Memo.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF   DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


Date: September 6, 2022 


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council 


From: Rodney J. Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 


Michael P. Stacey 
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


Subject: Agenda Item for the September 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and September 
27, 2022 Common Council Meeting. 


Vacation of a portion of Velkommen Way at US Highway 51. 
As part of the development in this corridor of the City, a portion of Velkommen Way is planned 
to be vacated at US Highway 51.  There will not be access to US Highway 51 from Velkommen 
Way going forward rather access will be at Nygaard Street to Roby Road and future Greenbriar 
Drive. The resolution and related documents are provided.  A recommendation to the Council is 
necessary.   



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Velkommen Way - Vacate\Plan Commission Consideration and Report on Discontinuance - 
Velkommen Way.docx 


CONSIDERATION AND REPORT OF THE 
CITY OF STOUGHTON PLAN COMMISSION ON THE RESOLUTION  


TO DISCONTINUE A PORTION OF VELKOMMEN WAY IN THE  
CITY OF STOUGTHON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 


WHEREAS, a petition to discontinue a portion of the Velkommen Way right-of-
way in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin was filed with the City, and a copy 
of the petition is attached hereto; and 


WHEREAS, the proposed discontinuance was referred to the City of Stoughton Plan 
Commission for consideration and report; and 


WHEREAS, upon consideration of the proposed discontinuance, the City of 
Stoughton Plan Commission has determined that the public interest requires that this 
portion of Velkommen Way be discontinued. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission hereby reports and 
recommends that the City Council of the City of Stoughton adopt a resolution discontinuing 
this portion of Velkommen Way.  The City’s official map should also be revised and 
amended consistent with this recommendation. 


This recommendation was duly adopted at a Plan Commission meeting on 
________________________, 20___. 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 


________________________ By: __________________________________ 
Date  
 Plan Commission Chair 
 
 
Attachment:  Petition  
 
 
 
 
 







 2 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 3  







 4 
 







\\sto-fs1\city-shared$\Planning\Developments\51 West - Dvorak\Velkommen Way - Vacate\3V63120-Resolution to Discontinue Velkommen Way.docx 


 
 


RECITALS 
 


A. The City has received a proper petition to discontinue certain  
right-of-way in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, shown and described on the map and description 
attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Right-of-
Way”). 


B. A Notice of Pendency of Application to Vacate the Right-of-Way was filed with the Register 
of Deeds for Dane County on August 9, 2022.  A Notice of Meeting was published as a class 3 
notice under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes.     


C. This matter was referred for consideration and report to the City of Stoughton Commission 
which considered and reported on this matter. 


D. The City of Stoughton currently has public improvements within the public Right-of-Way to be 
vacated and discontinued.  


E. The discontinuance of the Right-of-Way does not result in a landlocked parcel of property or 
deprive a landowner or public school of all access to a highway. 


F. The public interest requires that the Right-of-Way be discontinued. 


G. NOW, THEREFORE, based on the above, and pursuant to section 66.1003 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, the City Council of the City of Stoughton hereby resolves as follows: 


1. Discontinuance of Right-of-Way.  The Right-of-Way is hereby vacated and 
discontinued.  The City Clerk is instructed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the Dane 
County Register of Deeds. 


2. Official Map Amendment.  The City’s official map shall hereby be amended 
consistent with this Resolution.  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 


RETURN TO: 


City of Stoughton 
207 South Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
P.I.N. 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, 
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


  
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton to discontinue a portion of Velkommen Way, 
located in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin.   
 
 
 
Committee Action: Plan Commission recommended 


____ on _______________, 20___  
Fiscal Impact: 


 
   


File 
 


 
 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 







2 


3. Easements to Continue.  Pursuant to section 66.1005(2)(a) of the Wisconsin Statutes, 
the City of Stoughton retains all easements and rights the City may have that relate to any public 
underground or overground structures, improvements, or services within the public Right-of-Way 
being vacated and discontinued and all rights of entrance, maintenance, construction, and repair of the 
structures, improvements, or services therein. 


  
The above Resolution was duly adopted at the meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Stoughton on the _______ day of _____________________, 20___. 


APPROVED 
 
By _____________________________  
___________________, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
________________________________ 
___________________, City Clerk 


STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 
COUNTY OF DANE 


 
This instrument acknowledged before me on ______________________, 20___, by 


____________________, Mayor, and _________________, City Clerk, of the City of Stoughton, 
Dane County, Wisconsin. 
 
      
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission expires:   


 


Approved:  ___________ 


Posted:  _____________ 


Attachments:  Map of Velkommen Way to be Discontinued 
Description of Velkommen Way to Be Discontinued 


 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Matthew P. Dregne 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900 
Post Office Box 1784 







3 


Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1784 
608/256-0226 
 
 
 
 
 


 







4 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\091222\PC Info\Notice of Meeting - Class Three - Velkommen Way.docx 


 


NOTICE OF MEETING ON DISCONTINUANCE  
OF VELKOMMEN WAY 


 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 
 


PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, the City Council of the City of Stoughton will act upon a 
petition to discontinue the Velkommen Way right-of-way (and the making of a related amendment 
to any official City map) as shown and described on the map and description attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, at their meeting that starts at 7:00 p.m. on September 27, 2022 to be held in 
the Council Chambers located on the Second Floor of the Public Safety Building at 321 S. Fourth 
Street, Stoughton, WI, 53589. 


 
Dated: August 22, 2022 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 
 
 
 
 
Exhibits:  Map of Velkommen Way to Be Discontinued 


Description of Velkommen Way to Be Discontinued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




























\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\091222\PC Info\3511 hwy 138 Memo.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF   DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


Date: September 6, 2022 


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council 


From: Rodney J. Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 


Michael P. Stacey 
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


Subject: Agenda Item for the September 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and September 
27, 2022 Common Council Meeting. 


Request by Dave Riesop for extra-territorial certified survey map approval for a land swap at 
3511 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.   
The City has review authority for any land divisions/CSM requests within 1.5-mile of the City 
border.  According to the City Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, this property is beyond 
the Planned Urban Development Area of the City of Stoughton.   The applicant is simply swapping 
lands with the adjacent owner of agricultural land to even out his property.  We see no issues 
approving the CSM.  The resolution and related materials are provided.  A recommendation to the 
Council is necessary.   



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving an extra-territorial, jurisdictional (ETJ) certified survey map for property located at 3511 
State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None  


File Number: 
 
R -  - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, this certified survey map request is proposed to swap lands with the adjacent agricultural lands 
to even out the lots at 3511 State Highway 138 in the Town of Rutland; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 
determined by the Plan Commission and Common Council. This property is within the City’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is beyond the Planned Urban Development Area of the City of 
Stoughton; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 12, 2022 the Stoughton Plan Commission reviewed the certified survey map 
request and recommends Common Council approval as presented; now therefore 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional 
certified survey map request for property located at 3511 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, is hereby 
approved as presented contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County approval. 
 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                                     
Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\3511 STH 138 ETJ Land Division.doc 































 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.  City-County Bldg, Room 116  Madison, WI 53703-3342  Phone: 608.266.9086  Fax: 608.267.1540 


Dane County Planning & Development 
Land Division Review 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
August 23, 2022 
 
Wisconsin Mapping, LLC 
306 West Quarry St.  
Deerfield, WI 53531 
 
Re:  Wendt/Sime (CSM 10663) 


Town of Rutland, Section 11 
(2 lots, 81.707 acres) 
Rezone Petition: 11829, RR-8 to FP-35 and FP-35 to RR-8, Rural Residential 


 
  
Attn: Dave Riesop, S-1551 
 
The proposed CSM is a lot line adjustment with an adjacent metes and bounds parcel.  The 
southerly 40 acre parcel is not required to be a part of this proposal and that is the discretion of 
the surveyor and the landowner.  This land division application is hereby conditionally approved 
as follows: 
 
1.  The document is to be completed in accordance with S.236.34, Wisconsin State Statutes. 
 
2.  Rezone Petition #11829 is to become effective and all conditions established are to be timely 


satisfied. (County Board approved the Petition on June 2, 2022) 
• Recording of an approved CSM. 
• A minimum of 35 acres of the Sime’s FP-35 zoned property shall be included in a 


Certified Survey Map. 
 
3.  All owners of record are to be included in the owner’s certificate.  Spouse’s signature and 


middle initials are required.  In addition, a certificate of consent by all mortgagees/vendors 
shall be included and satisfied if relevant.   
County records indicate the following owners:  
• JERRY WENDT & SHARON W WENDT 
• BRUCE SIME 


 
4.  A City of Stoughton approval certificate is to be included with respect to their Extra-territorial 


review authority. 
 
5.  The required approval certificates are to be satisfied. 


• Town of Rutland 
• City of Stoughton 
• Dane County 







 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.  City-County Bldg, Room 116  Madison, WI 53703-3342  Phone: 608.266.9086  Fax: 608.267.1540 


6.  The approximate location of the on-site septic system is to be shown. 
 
7.  The tobacco shed is to be removed as per note on CSM prior to the recording of the final 


CSM.   
 
8.  Comments from the Dane County Surveyor are to be satisfied:   


• Pending 
 
9.  The recordable document is to be submitted for review and approval. 
 
 


 
 
When the above conditions have been fully satisfied, the original document along with a copy of 
this letter may be submitted for final review and the Dane County approving signature will be 
affixed.  Please allow for ten (10) working days for approving signature.  Any questions 
regarding this letter, please contact myself. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Daniel Everson 
Assistant Zoning Administrator 
267.1541 
 
CC:  
Town of Rutland 
City of Stoughton 







Sources: Esri, A irbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA,
Intermap and the GIS user community, Parcels


3511 State Highway 138 ETJ - CSM


Dane County Mask


Parcels


September 7, 2022 0 1,250 2,500625 Feet


¯


X





		conditional approval.pdf

		Town of Rutland, Section 11

		Dane County Planning & Development

		Land Division Review














 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 


 


 


 


 


 


 


To  City of Stoughton Plan Commission 


 


From  Rick Manthe and Matt Dregne 


 


Date  August 29, 2022   


 


Re  Mobile Support Structure Ordinance Revisions  


 


The siting of towers designed for installation of telecommunication equipment, also known 


as mobile support structures or mobile towers, remains a challenge for all Wisconsin 


municipalities. While state law preempts many local requirements, the City does retain 


limited discretion regarding mobile support structure placement. In conjunction with City 


planning staff, we have developed a recommended proposal that would bring the City’s 


code of ordinances up to date with recent state law changes while still maintaining some 


control over mobile support structure placement, and effectively encouraging the 


placement of towers in commercial or industrial districts.  


 


1. State Law Prohibitions. 


 


Before explaining the recommended changes to the City’s ordinances, it is important to 


provide context for what the City can actually regulate regarding mobile towers.  


 


As it relates to mobile towers, state law has preempted many types of local government 


regulations. The City may not do any of the following: 


 


A. Impose environmental testing, sampling, or monitoring requirements, or other 


compliance measures for radio frequency emissions, on mobile service facilities or 


mobile radio service providers. 


 


B. Impose a moratorium on the permitting, construction, or approval of siting and 


construction of mobile support structures. 


 


C. Prohibit the placement of a mobile service support structure in particular locations 


within the City. 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 2 


D. Charge a mobile radio service provider a fee in excess of $500 or $3,000 


depending on the type of deployment. 


 


E. Charge a mobile radio service provider any recurring fee. 


 


F. Permit 3rd party consultants to charge an applicant for any travel expenses 


incurred in the consultant's review of mobile service permits or applications. 


 


G. Disapprove a mobile tower based solely on aesthetic concerns. 


 


H. Enact or enforce an ordinance related to radio frequency signal strength or the 


adequacy of mobile service quality. 


 


I. Impose a surety requirement, unless the requirement is competitively neutral, 


nondiscriminatory, and consistent with surety requirements for other facilities and 


structures in the City which fall into disuse. There is a rebuttable presumption that 


a surety requirement of $20,000 or less complies with this restriction. 


 


J. Prohibit the placement of emergency power systems. 


 


K. Require that a mobile service support structure be placed on property owned by 


the City. 


 


L. Disapprove an application based solely on the height of the mobile service support 


structure or on whether the structure requires lighting. 


 


M. Condition approval of a mobile tower on the agreement of the structure or mobile 


service facility owner to provide space on or near the structure for the use of or by 


the City at less than market rate. 


 


N. Limit the duration of any permit that is granted. 


 


O. Require an applicant to construct a distributed antenna system instead of either 


constructing a new mobile service support structure or engaging in collocation. 


 


P. Disapprove an application based on an assessment by the City of the suitability of 


other locations for conducting the activity. 


 


Q. Require that a mobile service support structure, existing structure, or mobile 


service facilities have or be connected to backup battery power. 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 3 


R. Impose a setback or fall zone requirement for a mobile service support structure 


that is different from a requirement that is imposed on other types of commercial 


structures. 


 


S. Limit the height of a mobile service support structure to under 200 feet. 


 


T. Condition the approval of an application on, or otherwise require, the applicant's 


agreement to indemnify or insure the City. 


 


U. Condition the approval of an application on, or otherwise require, the applicant's 


agreement to permit the City to place at or collocate with the applicant's support 


structure any mobile service facilities provided or operated by the City. 
 


Wis. Stat. § 66.0404(4). This list of state preemptions is wide ranging and severely curtails 


the City’s ability to regulate the siting and construction of mobile support structures.  


 


While state law preempts many aspects of local cell tower regulations, recently the statutes 


were amended to grant more flexibility with setbacks in zoning districts that allow single-


family residences. Under this exception, the City may enact a setback requirement equal to 


the height of a mobile support structure in any zoning district that allows single-family 


residential use, or on any parcel adjacent to a property that allows single-family residential 


use. Wis. Stat. § 66.0404(4e). The setback would be measured from the lot line of the 


parcels.  


 


2. Current City Regulations of Mobile Support Structures. 


 


The City currently regulates mobile support structures via a conditional use permit process. 


See Stoughton Code § 78-206(7)(c). The current ordinance was adopted prior to state law 


changes preempting many local requirements. As a result, many provisions of the City’s 


current requirements have questionable validity and may not be enforceable. 


 


3. Ordinance Recommendations. 


 


We met with planning and zoning staff to discuss possible ordinance options for mobile 


support structures. After that discussion, we believe the most effective way to regulate the 


placement of mobile support structures is to utilize a setback requirement equal to the 


height of the tower in zoning districts that permit single-family residential uses, or on 


parcels adjacent to zoning districts that permit single-family residential uses. 


 


Staff believe with the current amount and location of zoning districts that permit single-


family residential uses, and the lot sizes in those districts, a setback restriction will 


effectively prohibit cell towers in those zoning districts. In turn, this will effectively lead 


to placement of cell towers in commercial and industrial type districts, where cell towers 







L:\DOCS\005649\001609\MEMOS\3V28632.DOCX 


0829221011 4 


are more suitable. To accomplish this, the proposed ordinance would make mobile towers 


a permitted use in all zoning districts, subject to the setback requirements explained above. 


 


An additional option the City could consider is making mobile support structures a 


conditional use in some zoning districts and permitted uses in other districts. This option, 


while legally possible, does pose some challenges.  


 


To use a conditional use approval, the City would need to create a conditional use process 


that has measurable standards for obtaining a conditional use permit. Wis. Stat. § 


62.23(7)(de)2.b.. If the applicant establishes compliance with those standards with 


substantial evidence, then the City must grant the conditional use permit. Wis. Stat. § 


62.23(7)(de)2.a.. Given the significant restrictions imposed by state law, creating 


measurable standards that provide the City with the regulatory authority it would desire 


would be difficult.  


 


However, one criteria the City could include in a conditional use process is to require that 


a mobile tower cannot decrease property values on adjacent properties. Property values are 


measurable criteria, and the Wisconsin court of appeals recently determined such a 


consideration compliant with state law. See Eco-Site, LLC v. Town of Cedarburg, 2019 WI 


App 42, ¶21, 388 Wis. 2d 375, 933 N.W.2d 179.  


 


With that said, a property value requirement could be difficult for the City to evaluate. One 


issue is determining what role staff would play. The City would need to decide if staff 


would do their own property value analysis, or simply rely on information that the applicant 


provides. The conditional use criteria could specify that the applicant must establish with 


substantial evidence that property values will not decrease. At that point, it would be up to 


members of the public to submit their own evidence of decrease in property values. Unless 


City staff or members of the public are able to provide evidence of a project’s impact on 


property values, the only evidence available would be from the applicant. 


 


The difficulties of administering a conditional use process for mobile towers is why we 


recommend that the City pursue the single-family residential setback option only. It will 


be much easier to administer, and effectively push mobile towers to more desirable 


locations.  







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An Ordinance Amending Sections 78-015 and 78-105, repealing and recreating Section 78-


206(7)(c), and amending Appendix C to Chapter 78 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances, 


 Relating to Mobile service support structures 


 


   


Committee Action:    Recommend approval   -   0 with the Mayor voting. 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date 


Introduced:   


 


 


  


RECITALS 


 


A. Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance is to regulate the siting and construction of new 


mobile service support structures in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 66.0404. 


 


B. Authority.  The City has the specific authority under Wis. Stat. § 62.23 and § 66.0404, to 


adopt and enforce this ordinance. 


 


ORDINANCE 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Section 78-015 is amended to remove the term “Communication tower.” 


 


2. Section 78-015 is amended to add the following term: 


 


Mobile service support structure: See Wis. Stat. § 66.0404(1)(n). 


 


3. Section 78-105 (1) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Rural Holding District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


4. Section 78-105 (2) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Exurban Residential (ER-1) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


5. Section 78-105 (2) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -3 (SR-3) District: 


 







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 2 


Mobile service support structure  


 


6. Section 78-105 (2) (c) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -4 (SR-4) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


7. Section 78-105 (2) (d) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -5 (SR-5) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


8. Section 78-105 (2) (e) 3. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Single-Family Residential -6 (SR-6) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


 


9. Section 78-105 (2) (f) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Two-Family Residential -6 (TR-6) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


10. Section 78-105 (2) (g) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Multi-Family Residential – 10 (MR-10) 


District: 


 


Mobile service support structure 


 


11. Section 78-105 (2) (h) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Multi-Family Residential – 24 (MR-24) 


District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


12. Section 78-105 (3) (a) 3. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Neighborhood Office (NO) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 3 


13. Section 78-105 (3) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Planned Office (PO) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


14. Section 78-105 (4) (a) 3. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Neighborhood Business (NB) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


15. Section 78-105 (4) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Planned Business (PB) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


16. Section 78-105 (4) (c) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Central Business (CB) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


17. Section 78-105 (5) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Planned Industrial (PI) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


18. Section 78-105 (5) (a) 2. b. is amended to remove “Communication Tower (per 


Section 78-206(7)(e))” from the list of principal land uses permitted as a 


conditional use in the Planned Industrial (PI) District. 


 


19. Section 78-105 (5) (b) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the General Industrial (GI) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


20. Section 78-105 (5) (b) 2. b. is amended to remove “Communication Tower (per 


Section 78-206(7)(e))” from the list of principal land uses permitted as a 


conditional use in the General Industrial (GI) District. 


 


21. Section 78-105 (5) (c) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Heavy Industrial (HI) District: 


 







 


L:\DOCS\005649\001609\ORDINANCE\3UN7404.DOCX 


0829221003 4 


Mobile service support structure  


 


22. Section 78-105 (5) (c) 2. b. is amended to remove “Communication Tower (per 


Section 78-206(7)(e))” from the list of principal land uses permitted as a 


conditional use in the Heavy Industrial (HI) District. 


 


23. Section 78-105 (6) (a) 2. a. is amended to add the following to the list of principal 


land uses permitted by right in the Institutional (I) District: 


 


Mobile service support structure  


 


 


24. Section 78-206(7)(c) is repealed and recreated to read as follows: 


 


In zoning districts where single-family uses are permitted principal uses, or on 


parcels adjacent to a parcel where single-family uses are permitted principal uses, 


the setback requirement for a mobile service support structure shall be equal to 


the height of the mobile service support structure. 


 


 


25. Appendix C of Chapter 78 is amended to replace “Communication tower” with 


“Mobile service support structure.” 


 


26. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of 


publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 





